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February 13, 2012

Mr. Edward D. Halpin,

President and Chief Executive Officer
STP Nuclear Operating Company
P.O. Box 289

Wadsworth, TX 77483

Subject: SOUTH TEXAS PROJECT ELECTRIC GENERATING STATION - NRC INTEGRATED
INSPECTION REPORT 05000498/2011005 AND 05000499/2011005

Dear Mr. Halpin:

On December 31, 2011, the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) completed an
inspection at your South Texas Project Electric Generating Station, Units 1 and 2, facility. The
enclosed inspection report documents the inspection results which were discussed on
January 5, 2012, with yourself and other members of your staff.

The inspections examined activities conducted under your license as they relate to safety and
compliance with the Commission’s rules and regulations and with the conditions of your license.
The inspectors reviewed selected procedures and records, observed activities, and interviewed
personnel.

Two NRC identified and one self-revealing findings of very low safety significance (Green) were
identified during this inspection.

All of these findings were determined to involve violations of NRC requirements. Further,
two licensee-identified violations which were determined to be of very low safety significance
are listed in this report. The NRC is treating these violations as non-cited violations (NCVs)
consistent with Section 2.3.2 of the Enforcement Policy.

If you contest these non-cited violations, you should provide a response within 30 days of the
date of this inspection report, with the basis for your denial, to the Nuclear Regulatory
Commission, ATTN: Document Control Desk, Washington DC 20555-0001; with copies to the
Regional Administrator, Region 1V; the Director, Office of Enforcement, United States Nuclear
Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555-0001; and the NRC Resident Inspector at
South Texas Project Electric Generating Station, Units 1 and 2, facility.

If you disagree with a cross-cutting aspect assignment in this report, you should provide a
response within 30 days of the date of this inspection report, with the basis for your
disagreement, to the Regional Administrator, Region IV; and the NRC Resident Inspector at the
South Texas Project Electric Generating Station, Units 1 and 2, facility.



President and CEO - E. Halpin -2-

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.390 of the NRC’s “Rules of Practice,” a copy of this letter, its
enclosure, and your response (if any) will be available electronically for public inspection in the
NRC Public Document Room or from the Publicly Available Records (PARS) component of
NRC’s Agencywide Document Access and Management System (ADAMS). ADAMS is
accessible from the NRC Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html (the Public
Electronic Reading Room).

Sincerely,
IRA/

Wayne C. Walker, Chief
Project Branch A
Division of Reactor Projects

Docket Nos.: 05000498, 05000499
License Nos.: NPF-76, NPF-80
Enclosure: Inspection Report 05000498/2011005 and 05000499/2011005
w/Attachment 1: Supplemental Information
w/Attachment 2: Documentation Request for Occupational Radiation Safety
Inspection

cc w/ encl: Electronic Distribution
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SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

IR 05000498/2011005, 05000499/2011005; 10/01/2011 — 12/31/2011; South Texas Project
Electric Generating Station, Units 1 and 2, Integrated Resident and Regional Report;
Radiological Hazard; Occupational ALARA Planning; Identification and Resolution of Problems.

The report covered a 3-month period of inspection by resident inspectors and announced
baseline inspections by regional based inspectors. Three Green non-cited violations of very low
safety significance were identified. The significance of most findings is indicated by their color
(Green, White, Yellow, or Red) using Inspection Manual Chapter 0609, “Significance
Determination Process.” The cross-cutting aspect is determined using Inspection Manual
Chapter 0310, “Components Within the Cross-Cutting Areas.” Findings for which the
significance determination process does not apply may be Green or be assigned a severity level
after NRC management review. The NRC’s program for overseeing the safe operation of
commercial nuclear power reactors is described in NUREG-1649, “Reactor Oversight Process,’
Revision 4, dated December 2006.

4

A. NRC-Identified Findings and Self-Revealing Findings

Cornerstone: Mitigating Systems

° Green. The inspectors identified a non-cited violation of 10 CFR Part 50,
Appendix B, Criteria Ill, “Design Control,” for the failure to ensure that design
standards were correctly translated into drawings, procedures, and instructions.
Specifically, the design specifications of the Class 1E 4160 Vac buses were not
maintained with the installation of a new transformer. The root cause
investigation determined that the design change package that installed the new
transformers on Units 1 and 2 in October 2009 and April 2010, respectively, was
not modeled correctly. The licensee captured this event as Condition
Report 11-10205 and implemented immediate compensatory measures of
increased monitoring on the Class 1E 4160 Vac buses by implementing
temporary logs to ensure that the Class 1E loads were within their technical
specifications surveillance procedure acceptance criteria until the new design
change package could be implemented on each unit.

The finding was more than minor because it was associated with the Mitigating
Systems Cornerstone attribute of Design Control and affected the cornerstone
objective to ensure the availability, reliability, and capability of systems that
respond to initiating events to prevent undesirable consequences. The
inadequate design change package resulted in the licensee declaring the Unit 2
Class 1E 4160 Vac E2B bus inoperable because it was outside of the technical
specification surveillance procedure acceptance criteria for longer than allowed
by technical specifications. The inspectors performed the significance
determination using NRC Inspection Manual Chapter 0609, Attachment 0609.04,
“Phase 1 — Initial Screening and Characterization of Findings,” dated

January 10, 2008, because it affected the Mitigating Systems Cornerstone while
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the plant was at power. The finding was determined to be of very low safety
significance because it was a design deficiency that did not result in a loss of
functionality per Part 9900 Technical Guidance, “Operability Determinations &
Functionality Assessments for Resolution of Degraded or Nonconforming
Conditions Adverse to Quality or Safety,” dated April 16, 2008. In addition, this
finding had human performance cross-cutting aspects associated with work
practices in that the licensee did not ensure supervisory and management
oversight of work activities, including contractors, such that nuclear safety was
supported [H.4(c)] (Section 40A2).

Cornerstone: Occupational Radiation Safety

Green. The inspectors reviewed a self-revealing non-cited violation of Technical
Specification 6.8.1.a, for the failure to follow procedural and radiation work permit
requirements. On April 22, 2011, work was performed in the Unit 1 reactor cavity
and the health physics technician providing job coverage failed to verify dose and
dose rate setpoints, and incorrectly assumed that removal of equipment
measuring greater than 100 mrem per hour from the reactor cavity could
proceed. Consequently, a contract radiation worker failed to comply with special
instructions to not remove such equipment from the reactor cavity without the
concurrence of a radiation protection supervisor or designee. As a result, the
worker received two dose rate alarms. The licensee’s corrective actions were to
counsel the worker and technician to ensure a complete understanding of
worker’s radiation work permit instructions. In addition, licensee procedures
were revised to require telemetry when removing items from the water. This
issue was entered into the corrective action program as Condition

Report 11-7217.

The finding was more than minor because it was associated with the
Occupational Radiation Safety Cornerstone attribute of Program and Process
and affected the cornerstone objective of ensuring adequate protection of worker
health and safety from exposure to radiation during routine operations. The
finding resulted in the worker being exposed to higher radiation levels and
potentially unintended dose. When processed through the Occupational
Radiation Safety Significance Determination Process, the inspectors determined
the finding to be of very low safety significance because it was not: (1) an
ALARA finding, (2) an overexposure, (3) a substantial potential for overexposure,
or (4) an inability to assess dose. The finding had a cross-cutting aspect in the
area of human performance, work practices component because the health
physics technician, providing coverage, failed to define and effectively
communicate expectations regarding procedural compliance [H.4(b)]

(Section 2RS01).

Green. On November 1, 2011, the inspectors identified a non-cited violation of
Technical Specification 6.8.1.a, for the failure to follow procedures and minimize
occupational doses during an outage maintenance activity for the disassembly of
the Unit 2 reactor head. Specifically, Work Activity Number 376357 was not
properly planned and managed, which resulted in unplanned worker dose. This
work activity for the disassembly of the Unit 2 old reactor vessel closure head
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during the Unit 2 spring 2010 outage had a projected dose of 8.396 rem.
However, the job ended with an actual collective dose of 14.072 rem. This
exceeded the dose estimate by 68 percent. The licensee addressed this issue in
the corrective action program as Condition Reports 10-6669, 10-7863,

and 11-29161.

This finding is more than minor because it affected the Occupational Radiation
Safety Cornerstone attribute of Program and Process, in that, failure to follow
ALARA procedures caused increased collective radiation dose for the job activity
to exceed 5 person-rem and exceeded the planned dose by more than 50
percent. Using the Occupational Radiation Safety Significance Determination
Process, the inspectors determined this finding to be of very low safety
significance because although it involved ALARA planning and controls, the
licensee’s latest rolling 3-year average does not exceed 135 person-rem per unit.
Furthermore, the finding had an associated cross-cutting aspect in the area of
human performance, work control component because the licensee did not fully
incorporate risk insights, job site conditions, plant structures, systems, and
components, and radiological safety, as well as the need for planned
contingencies to maintain doses ALARA [H.3(a)] (Section 2RS02).

Licensee-ldentified Violations

Violations of very low safety significance, which were identified by the licensee, have
been reviewed by the inspectors. Corrective actions taken or planned by the licensee
have been entered into the licensee’s corrective action program. These violations and
corrective action tracking numbers (condition report numbers) are listed in

Section 40A7.
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REPORT DETAILS
Summary of Plant Status

Unit 1 began the inspection period at 100 percent rated thermal power and essentially remained
there for the remainder of the inspection period.

Unit 2 began the inspection period at 100 percent rated thermal power and remained there

until October 23, 2011, when the unit entered coastdown operations in preparation for Refueling
Outage 2RE15. Unit 2 was shut down and commenced Refueling Outage 2RE15 on

October 29, 2011. On November 21, 2011, Unit 2 commenced a reactor startup after
completing Refueling Outage 2RE15. Unit 2 went critical and closed the main generator output
breaker on November 22, 2011. One hundred percent rated thermal power was achieved on
November 24, 2011. On November 29, 2011, Unit 2 experienced an automatic reactor trip as a
result of main generator lockout condition. As a result, Unit 2 entered Forced Outage 2F1102,
for repairs to the main generator and remained shut down for the remainder of the inspection
period.

1. REACTOR SAFETY

Cornerstones: Initiating Events, Mitigating Systems, Barrier Integrity, and
Emergency Preparedness

1R04 Equipment Alignments (71111.04)

A Partial Walkdown

a. Inspection Scope

The inspectors performed partial system walkdowns of the following risk-significant

systems:
. November 1, 2011, Unit 1, train C essential chilled water system
. December 28, 2011, Unit 2, train A component cooling water system

The inspectors selected these systems based on their risk significance relative to the
reactor safety cornerstones at the time they were inspected. The inspectors attempted
to identify any discrepancies that could affect the function of the system, and, therefore,
potentially increase risk. The inspectors reviewed applicable operating procedures,
system diagrams, UFSAR, technical specification requirements, administrative technical
specifications, outstanding work orders, condition reports, and the impact of ongoing
work activities on redundant trains of equipment in order to identify conditions that could
have rendered the systems incapable of performing their intended functions. The
inspectors also inspected accessible portions of the systems to verify system
components and support equipment were aligned correctly and operable. The
inspectors examined the material condition of the components and observed operating
parameters of equipment to verify that there were no obvious deficiencies. The
inspectors also verified that the licensee had properly identified and resolved equipment
alignment problems that could cause initiating events or impact the capability of
mitigating systems or barriers and entered them into the corrective action program with
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b.

b.

1R05

the appropriate significance characterization. Specific documents reviewed during this
inspection are listed in the attachment.

These activities constitute completion of two partial system walkdown samples as
defined in Inspection Procedure 71111.04-05.

Findings
No findings were identified.

Complete Walkdown

Inspection Scope

On November 18, 2011, the inspectors performed a complete system alignment
inspection of the train B residual heat removal system to verify the functional
capability of the system. The inspectors selected this system because it was
considered both safety significant and risk significant in the licensee’s probabilistic risk
assessment. The inspectors inspected the system to review mechanical and electrical
equipment line ups, electrical power availability, system pressure and temperature
indications, as appropriate, component labeling, component lubrication, component
and equipment cooling, hangers and supports, operability of support systems, and

to ensure that ancillary equipment or debris did not interfere with equipment operation.
The inspectors reviewed a sample of past and outstanding work orders to determine
whether any deficiencies significantly affected the system function. In addition, the
inspectors reviewed the corrective action program database to ensure that system
equipment-alignment problems were being identified and appropriately resolved.
Specific documents reviewed during this inspection are listed in the attachment.

These activities constitute completion of one complete system walkdown sample as
defined in Inspection Procedure 71111.04-05.

Findings
No findings were identified.
Fire Protection (71111.05)

Quarterly Fire Inspection Tours

Inspection Scope

The inspectors conducted fire protection walkdowns that were focused on availability,
accessibility, and the condition of firefighting equipment in the following risk-significant
plant areas:

) November 1, 2011, Unit 1, standby diesel generator 11, Fire Zones Z502, Z505,
Z508, Z511, and Z514

. November 4, 2011, Unit 2, standby diesel generator 22, Fire Zones Z501, Z504,
Z507, Z510, and Z513
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b.

1R06

. November 15, 2011, Unit 1, auxiliary feedwater pump 13, Fire Zone Z403
. November 15, 2011, Unit 1, auxiliary feedwater pump 14, Fire Zone Z400

The inspectors reviewed areas to assess if licensee personnel had implemented a fire
protection program that adequately controlled combustibles and ignition sources within
the plant; effectively maintained fire detection and suppression capability; maintained
passive fire protection features in good material condition; and had implemented
adequate compensatory measures for out of service, degraded or inoperable fire
protection equipment, systems, or features, in accordance with the licensee’s fire plan.
The inspectors selected fire areas based on their overall contribution to internal fire risk
as documented in the plant’s Individual Plant Examination of External Events with later
additional insights, their potential to affect equipment that could initiate or mitigate a plant
transient, or their impact on the plant’s ability to respond to a security event. Using the
documents listed in the attachment, the inspectors verified that fire hoses and
extinguishers were in their designated locations and available for immediate use; that
fire detectors and sprinklers were unobstructed; that transient material loading was
within the analyzed limits; and fire doors, dampers, and penetration seals appeared to
be in satisfactory condition. The inspectors also verified that minor issues identified
during the inspection were entered into the licensee’s corrective action program.
Specific documents reviewed during this inspection are listed in the attachment.

These activities constitute completion of four quarterly fire-protection inspection samples
as defined in Inspection Procedure 71111.05-05.

Findings
No findings were identified.
Flood Protection Measures (71111.06)

Inspection Scope

The inspectors reviewed the UFSAR, the flooding analysis, and plant procedures to
assess susceptibilities involving internal flooding; reviewed the corrective action program
to determine if licensee personnel identified and corrected flooding problems; inspected
underground bunkers/manholes to verify the adequacy of sump pumps, level alarm
circuits, cable splices subject to submergence, and drainage for bunkers/manholes; and
verified that operator actions for coping with flooding can reasonably achieve the desired
outcomes. The inspectors also inspected the area listed below to verify the adequacy of
equipment seals located below the flood line, floor and wall penetration seals, watertight
door seals, common drain lines and sumps, sump pumps, level alarms, and control
circuits, and temporary or removable flood barriers. Specific documents reviewed during
this inspection are listed in the attachment.

o December 16, 2011, Unit 1, standby diesel generator building

These activities constitute completion of one flood protection measures inspection
sample as defined in Inspection Procedure 71111.06-05.
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b. Findings
No findings were identified.
1R08 Inservice Inspection Activities (71111.08)

Completion of Sections .1 through .5, below, constitutes completion of one sample as
defined in Inspection Procedure 71111.08-05.

A Inspection Activities Other Than Steam Generator Tube Inspection, Pressurized Water
Reactor Vessel Upper Head Penetration Inspections, Boric Acid Corrosion Control
(71111.08-02.01)

a. Inspection Scope

The inspectors observed six nondestructive examination activities and reviewed

eight nondestructive examination activities that included four types of examinations. The
licensee did not identify any relevant indications accepted for continued service during
the nondestructive examinations.

The inspectors directly observed the following nondestructive examinations:

SYSTEM WELD IDENTIFICATION EXAMINATION TYPE
Safety Injection  2-SI-0010A Visual Examination - VT-2
Reactor RC2422HL5015 Strut to Coupling Visual Examination - VT-2
Coolant System
Safety Injection  2-SI-0010A Penetrant Testing
Reactor RC2422HL5015 Strut to Coupling Penetrant Testing
Coolant System
Reactor 12-RC-2125-BB1-8 Ultrasonic Phased Array
Coolant System
Feedwater 18-FW-2029-AA2 / IPLI-LPLS8 / Magnetic Particle Testing —
System Pipe Lugs Dry Powder

In addition to the above nondestructive examinations, the inspectors observed ultrasonic
examination of safety injection system 8-inch piping, SI-1327-BB1, inspecting for foreign
material (metaborite crystals) and gas accumulation.
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The inspectors reviewed records for the following nondestructive examinations:

SYSTEM WELD IDENTIFICATION EXAMINATION TYPE
Safety Injection  2-SI-0010A Visual Examination - VT-2
Reactor RC2422HL5015 Strut to Coupling Visual Examination - VT-2

Coolant System

Reactor Reactor Vessel Support -Train A/ Remote Visual Examination
Coolant System RVSA

Reactor Reactor Vessel Support -Train B/ Remote Visual Examination
Coolant System RVSB

Safety Injection  2-SI-0010A Penetrant Testing

Reactor RC2422HL5015 Strut to Coupling Penetrant Testing

Coolant System

Reactor 12-RC-2125-BB1-8 Ultrasonic Phased Array
Coolant System

Feedwater 18-FW-2029-AA2 / IPLI-LPL8 / Magnetic Particle Testing — Dry
System Pipe Lugs Powder

During the review and observation of each examination, the inspectors verified that
activities were performed in accordance with the ASME Code requirements and
applicable procedures. The inspectors also verified the qualifications of all
nondestructive examination technicians performing the inspections were current.

The inspectors reviewed one weld on a support for the reactor coolant system pressure
boundary.

The inspectors reviewed records for the following welding activities:

SYSTEM WELD IDENTIFICATION WELD TYPE

Reactor RC2422HL5015 Strut to Coupling Shielded Metal Arc Welding
Coolant System

The inspectors verified, by review, that the welding procedure specifications and the
welder had been properly qualified in accordance with ASME Code, Section IX
requirements. The inspectors also verified, through observation and record review,
that essential variables for the welding process were identified, recorded in the
procedure qualification record, and formed the bases for qualification of the welding
procedure specifications. Specific documents reviewed during this inspection are listed
in the attachment.

These actions constitute completion of the requirements for Section 02.01.

-9- Enclosure



Findings
No findings were identified.

Vessel Upper Head Penetration Inspection Activities (71111.08-02.02)

Inspection Scope

The licensee did not perform inspections of the vessel upper head penetrations. No
inspections were performed because the vessel upper head and its assembly were
replaced and inspected in a previous outage.

These actions constitute completion of the requirements for Section 02.02.
Findings
No findings were identified.

Boric Acid Corrosion Control Inspection Activities (71111.08-02.03)

Inspection Scope

The inspectors evaluated the implementation of the licensee’s boric acid corrosion
control program for monitoring degradation of those systems that could be adversely
affected by boric acid corrosion. The inspectors reviewed the documentation associated
with the licensee’s boric acid corrosion control walkdown as specified in

Procedure 0PGP03-ZE-0133, “Boric Acid Corrosion Control Program.” The inspectors
also reviewed the visual records of the components and equipment. The inspectors
verified that the visual inspections emphasized locations where boric acid leaks could
cause degradation of safety-significant components. The inspectors also verified that
the engineering evaluations for those components where boric acid was identified gave
assurance that the ASME Code wall thickness limits were properly maintained. The
inspectors confirmed that the corrective actions performed for evidence of boric acid
leaks were consistent with requirements of the ASME Code. Specific documents
reviewed during this inspection are listed in the attachment.

These actions constitute completion of the requirements for Section 02.03.
Findings

No findings were identified.
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Steam Generator Tube Inspection Activities (71111.08-02.04)

Inspection Scope

The licensee did not perform inspections of the steam generator tube inspection
analysis. No inspections were performed because the steam generators were replaced
and inspected in a previous outage, and no inspections were required this outage.

These actions constitute completion of the requirements for Section 02.04.
Findings
No findings were identified.

Identification and Resolution of Problems (71111.08-02.05)

Inspection scope

The inspectors reviewed 15 condition reports which dealt with inservice inspection
activities and found the corrective actions for inservice inspection issues were
appropriate. From this review, the inspectors concluded that the licensee has an
appropriate threshold for entering inservice inspection issues into the corrective action
program and has procedures that direct a root cause evaluation when necessary. The
licensee also has an effective program for applying industry inservice inspection
operating experience. Specific documents reviewed during this inspection are listed in
the attachment.

The inspectors reviewed the Reactor Coolant System Materials Management Program
Self Assessment which was performed August 4-6, 2009. This self assessment,
performed by the licensee’s quality assurance department, reviewed the licensee’s
Materials Degradation Management Program. The conclusion of the self assessment
identified that the program has been implemented to meet regulatory requirements.
Additionally, the overall administration of the program was adequate with no deficiencies,
but several areas for improvement. The self assessment identified 25 conditions
adverse to quality. The inspectors reviewed these conditions to determine if the
conditions were given appropriate treatment with respect to the licensee’s corrective
action program and safety significance. The inspectors determined that these conditions
were entered into the corrective action program, and the licensee has an appropriate
plan for resolving these conditions.

These actions constitute completion of the requirements of Section 02.05.
Findings

Introduction. The inspectors identified a potential performance deficiency related to the
installation of a seal cap enclosure to control leakage from the pressure retaining bolted
connection on safety injection system hot leg check valve 1N122XSI0010A, a portion of
the reactor coolant system Class 1 pressure boundary. This issue is an unresolved item
pending the review of additional information from the licensee and discussions with the
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Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation, Division of Engineering, Piping and
Nondestructive Examination Branch.

Description. In Condition Report 11-22991, during Refueling Outage 2RE15, the
licensee identified reactor coolant system leakage from the valve seal cap enclosure on
valve 1TN122XSI0010A, when the licensee inspected this component. This inspection
identified boric acid crystals on the insulation. When the insulation was removed, water
and boron crystals were found inside the seal cap enclosure and on the valve bonnet. A
weld defect (slag inclusion and porosity) was identified on the seal cap enclosure to
bonnet seal weld, which was reworked in Refueling Outage 2RE15 per the ASME
Section XI Program. This seal cap enclosure was originally installed in 1997 due to
identified leakage from the body to bonnet gasket of check valve 1N122XSI0010A.

On February 8, 1997, Condition Report 97-2156 documented steam coming from

valve 1N122XSI0010A bonnet with boron buildup under the valve. The condition was
identified while the system was at normal operating temperature and pressure, and was
classified as a condition adverse to quality. The corrective action was to add a seal cap
enclosure per the instructions of Work Package 336951 and the Westinghouse Vendor
Technical Document VTD-W120-0652. However, the licensee stated in the design
package that, “The actual pressure boundary is still considered the gasket seating area
of the body to bonnet and not the enclosure. Therefore, the enclosure is not a pressure
retaining component as defined in ASME (code) for this application.” In addition, the
design package calculation V-EC-1655 had the following statement, “The seal cap is
considered a non-structural, non-pressure retaining attachment to the valve; therefore, it
does not have to meet ASME Code allowables. This is because the pressure retaining
function is still maintained by the main flange and its bolting. The material used must be
identified and be compatible with the pressure retaining components.” The licensee
stated on numerous occasions that the design change did not shift the pressure
boundary to the seal cap enclosure. When the licensee welded the seal cap enclosure
around the valve body to bonnet gasket, it masked the leakage from the gasket. The
licensee closed out Condition Report 97-2156 as completed, and the leakage from the
body to bonnet joint on 1N122XSI0010A was no longer tracked in the corrective action
program. The inspectors noted that the licensee documented leakage from the seal cap
enclosure on multiple occasions between 1997 and 2011. These conditions were
documented in Condition Reports 99-1108, 10-10120, and 11-22991. Despite repeated
indications that there was an active boric acid leak from the pressure boundary, the leak
from the bolted connection was not corrected, evaluated, or entered into the boric acid
corrosion control program.

The inspectors identified issues of concern with not correcting the degraded
body-to-bonnet gasket as well as the inspection and/or corrective actions specified in
accordance with the ASME Code.

Corrective Action Considerations:
The inspectors identified the licensee’s failure to replace the leaking body-to-bonnet
gasket as an issue of concern which could result in the degradation and failure of the

body-to-bonnet bolts. During a teleconference with the licensee on January 4, 2012, the
licensee stated that the seal cap enclosure replaced the body-to-bonnet gasket and was
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1R1

a safety-related constructed component. The inspectors asked the licensee to provide
the information that showed that this component was a qualified safety-related
component.

Code Considerations:

The inspectors identified two issues of concern with the installation of the seal cap as to
how the licensee was meeting ASME Code requirements. The licensee is currently
committed to ASME Code Section XI, 2004, without addendum. The two ASME Code
issues of concern are as follows:

° ASME Code Section XI IWA 5250 (a), in part, states that the source of leakage
detected during the conduct of a system pressure test shall be located and
evaluated by the Owner for corrective measures.

. ASME Code Section XI, Table IWB-2500-1, Examination Category B-P,
Item B15.10, requires a system leakage test and visual examination of all
pressure retaining components.

The licensee stated that they were not required to evaluate this valve for corrective
actions or to do a visual examination of the body-to-bonnet joint (pressure retaining
component) because the seal cap encloses the joint and there is no visible leakage.
The licensee further stated that there is no leakage across the joint when pressure
equalizes across the leaking joint when the seal cap enclosure reaches reactor coolant
system pressure, so they were in compliance with the code.

The inspectors are continuing to have discussions with personnel from the Office of
Nuclear Reactor Regulation, Division of Engineering, Piping and NDE Branch, to
determine the ASME Code requirements for this condition.

This issue was entered into the licensee’s corrective action program as Condition
Report 11-23693, and will be treated as an unresolved item pending the review of
additional information from the licensee and discussions with Headquarters personnel:
URI 05000499/2011005-01, “Seal Cap on Safety Injection System Hot Leg

Check Valve.”

Licensed Operator Requalification Program (71111.11)

Quarterly Review

Inspection Scope

On December 12, 2011, the inspectors observed a crew of licensed operators in the
plant’s simulator to verify that operator performance was adequate, evaluators were
identifying and documenting crew performance problems, and training was being
conducted in accordance with licensee procedures. The inspectors evaluated the
following areas:

° Licensed operator performance
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b.

o Crew’s clarity and formality of communications

. Crew’s ability to take timely actions in the conservative direction

. Crew’s prioritization, interpretation, and verification of annunciator alarms

. Crew’s correct use and implementation of abnormal and emergency procedures
° Control board manipulations

. Oversight and direction from supervisors

. Crew’s ability to identify and implement appropriate technical specification

actions and emergency plan actions and notifications
The inspectors compared the crew’s performance in these areas to preestablished
operator action expectations and successful critical task completion requirements.
Specific documents reviewed during this inspection are listed in the attachment.

These activities constitute completion of one quarterly licensed-operator requalification
program sample as defined in Inspection Procedure 71111.11.

Findings
No findings were identified.

Biennial Inspection (71111.11B)

Inspection Scope

The licensed operator requalification program involves two training cycles that are
conducted over a 2-year period. In the first cycle, the annual cycle, the operators are
administered an operating test consisting of job performance measures and simulator
scenarios. In the second part of the training cycle, the biennial cycle, operators are
administered an operating test and a comprehensive written examination.

To assess the performance effectiveness of the licensed operator requalification
program, the inspectors conducted personnel interviews, reviewed both the operating
tests and written examinations, and observed ongoing operating test activities.

The inspectors interviewed 13 licensee personnel, consisting of 5 operators;

3 instructors; 4 managers; and the simulator supervisor, to determine their
understanding of the policies and practices for administering requalification
examinations. The inspectors also reviewed operator performance on the written exams
and operating tests. These reviews included observations of portions of the operating
tests by the inspectors. The operating tests observed included three job performance
measures and two scenarios that were used in the current biennial requalification cycle.
These observations allowed the inspectors to assess the licensee's effectiveness in
conducting the operating test to ensure operator mastery of the training program
content. The inspectors also reviewed medical records of seven licensed operators for
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conformance to license conditions and the licensee’s system for tracking qualifications.
The inspectors did not review license reactivations because the licensee has not
reactivated any licenses since the last biennial inspection in 2009.

The results of these examinations were reviewed to determine the effectiveness of the
licensee’s appraisal of operator performance and to determine if feedback of
performance analyses into the requalification training program was being accomplished.
The inspectors interviewed members of the training department and reviewed minutes of
training review group meetings to assess the responsiveness of the licensed operator
requalification program to incorporate the lessons learned from both plant and industry
events. Examination results were also assessed to determine if they were consistent
with the guidance contained in NUREG 1021, “Operator Licensing Examination
Standards for Power Reactors,” Revision 9, Supplement 1, and NRC Manual

Chapter 0609, Appendix I, “Operator Requalification Human Performance Significance
Determination Process.”

In addition to the above, the inspectors reviewed examination security measures,
simulator fidelity, and existing logs of simulator deficiencies.

On December 15, 2011, the licensee informed the lead inspector of the following Unit 1
and Unit 2 results for the Licensed Operator Requalification Program:

° Fifteen of fifteen crews passed the simulator portion of the operating test

. Eighty-eight of eighty-eight licensed operators passed the simulator portion of the
operating test

. Eighty-seven of eighty-eight licensed operators passed the job performance
measure portion of the examination

o Eighty-four of eighty-eight licensed operators passed the biennial written exam

The individuals that failed the applicable portions of their exams and operating tests
were remediated, retested, and passed their retake exams.

The inspectors completed one inspection sample of the biennial licensed operator
requalification program.

Findings

No findings were identified.
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1R12 Maintenance Effectiveness (71111.12)

a.

Inspection Scope

The inspectors evaluated degraded performance issues involving the following
risk-significant systems:

) November 14, 2011, Units 1 and 2, chemical and volume control system (CV)
. December 21, 2011, Units 1 and 2, reactor coolant system (RC)

The inspectors reviewed events such as where ineffective equipment maintenance has
resulted in valid or invalid automatic actuations of engineered safeguards systems and
independently verified the licensee’s actions to address system performance or condition
problems in terms of the following:

. Implementing appropriate work practices

o Identifying and addressing common cause failures

. Scoping of systems in accordance with 10 CFR 50.65(b)

. Characterizing system reliability issues for performance

. Charging unavailability for performance

° Trending key parameters for condition monitoring

° Ensuring proper classification in accordance with 10 CFR 50.65(a)(1) or (a)(2)
. Verifying appropriate performance criteria for structures, systems, and

components classified as having an adequate demonstration of performance
through preventive maintenance, as described in 10 CFR 50.65(a)(2), or as
requiring the establishment of appropriate and adequate goals and corrective
actions for systems classified as not having adequate performance, as described
in 10 CFR 50.65(a)(1)

The inspectors assessed performance issues with respect to the reliability, availability,
and condition monitoring of the system. In addition, the inspectors verified maintenance
effectiveness issues were entered into the corrective action program with the appropriate
significance characterization. Specific documents reviewed during this inspection are
listed in the attachment.

These activities constitute completion of two quarterly maintenance effectiveness
samples as defined in Inspection Procedure 71111.12-05.

Findings

No findings were identified.

1R13 Maintenance Risk Assessments and Emergent Work Control (71111.13)
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1R15

Inspection Scope

The inspectors reviewed licensee personnel’s evaluation and management of plant risk
for the maintenance and emergent work activities affecting risk-significant and
safety-related equipment listed below to verify that the appropriate risk assessments
were performed prior to removing equipment for work:

° October 3-25, 2011, Unit 2, using the configuration risk management program to
exceed the front stop for safety-related 125 Vdc battery and inverter maintenance
for trains A, B, C, and D

) October 27-November 23, 2011, Unit 2, Refueling Outage 2RE15

The inspectors selected these activities based on potential risk significance relative to
the reactor safety cornerstones. As applicable for each activity, the inspectors verified
that licensee personnel performed risk assessments as required by 10 CFR 50.65(a)(4)
and that the assessments were accurate and complete. When licensee personnel
performed emergent work, the inspectors verified that the licensee personnel promptly
assessed and managed plant risk. The inspectors reviewed the scope of maintenance
work, discussed the results of the assessment with the licensee’s probabilistic risk
analyst or shift technical advisor, and verified plant conditions were consistent with the
risk assessment. The inspectors also reviewed the technical specification requirements
and inspected portions of redundant safety systems, when applicable, to verify risk
analysis assumptions were valid and applicable requirements were met. Specific
documents reviewed during this inspection are listed in the attachment.

These activities constitute completion of two maintenance risk assessments and
emergent work control inspection samples as defined in Inspection
Procedure 71111.13-05.

Findings
No findings were identified.
Operability Evaluations (71111.15)

Inspection Scope

The inspectors reviewed the following issues:

. October 20, 2011, Units 1 and 2, failure of the Unit 1 steam generator 1C outside
reactor containment auxiliary feedwater isolation motor operated valve,
MOV-0085, due to pinion gear damage from improper setting of set screws, and
the other 108 Unit 1 and 2 motor operated valves that are susceptible

. December 17, 2011, Unit 2, residual heat removal heat exchanger 2A bypass
flow control valve positioner linkage rod thread engagement evaluation

. December 27, 2011, Unit 1, train C essential cooling water system intake bay
level instrumentation failure
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1R19

The inspectors selected these potential operability issues based on the risk significance
of the associated components and systems. The inspectors evaluated the technical
adequacy of the evaluations to ensure that technical specification operability was
properly justified and the subject component or system remained available such that no
unrecognized increase in risk occurred. The inspectors compared the operability and
design criteria in the appropriate sections of the technical specifications and UFSAR to
the licensee personnel’s evaluations to determine whether the components or systems
were operable. Where compensatory measures were required to maintain operability,
the inspectors determined whether the measures in place would function as intended
and were properly controlled. The inspectors determined, where appropriate,
compliance with bounding limitations associated with the evaluations. Additionally, the
inspectors also reviewed a sampling of corrective action documents to verify that the
licensee was identifying and correcting any deficiencies associated with operability
evaluations. Specific documents reviewed during this inspection are listed in the
attachment.

These activities constitute completion of three operability evaluations inspection samples
as defined in Inspection Procedure 71111.15-05.

Findings

See Section 40A7 for a licensee-identified finding associated with the motor operated
valve pinion gear damage.

Postmaintenance Testing (71111.19)

Inspection Scope

The inspectors reviewed the following postmaintenance activities to verify that
procedures and test activities were adequate to ensure system operability and functional
capability:

° October 13, 2011, Unit 1, engineered safety features (ESF) load sequencer
train Ainvalid Mode Il actuation resulting from a failed integrated circuit on the
processor module (see Section 40A3 for additional information)

. October 25, 2011, Unit 1, Wide Range Nuclear Instrument 46 indicated reactor
power at 34 percent with actual reactor power at 100 percent due to a failed
power supply

. November 16, 2011, Unit 2, ESF 4160 Vac train B transformer load tap changer
setting adjustments and installation of alarm features

. December 16, 2011, Unit 1, component cooling water train 1A return header
isolation valve MOV-0052, pinion inspection and rework for key, setscrew, and
shaft dimple

. December 16, 2011, Unit 1, component cooling water train 1A heat exchanger

outlet temperature control valve MOV-0643, pinion inspection and rework for key,
setscrew, and shaft dimple
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1R20

The inspectors selected these activities based upon the structure, system, or
component’s ability to affect risk. The inspectors evaluated these activities for the
following (as applicable):

. The effect of testing on the plant had been adequately addressed; testing was
adequate for the maintenance performed

. Acceptance criteria were clear and demonstrated operational readiness; test
instrumentation was appropriate

The inspectors evaluated the activities against the technical specifications, the UFSAR,
10 CFR Part 50 requirements, licensee procedures, and various NRC generic
communications to ensure that the test results adequately ensured that the equipment
met the licensing basis and design requirements. In addition, the inspectors reviewed
corrective action documents associated with postmaintenance tests to determine
whether the licensee was identifying problems and entering them in the corrective action
program and that the problems were being corrected commensurate with their
importance to safety. Specific documents reviewed during this inspection are listed in
the attachment.

These activities constitute completion of five postmaintenance testing inspection
samples as defined in Inspection Procedure 71111.19-05.

Findings

See Section 40A2.4 for a finding associated with the ESF 4160 Vac train B transformer
load tap changer settings.

Refueling and Other Outage Activities (71111.20)

Unit 2 Refueling Outage 2RE15

Inspection Scope

The inspectors reviewed the outage safety plan and contingency plans for the

Unit 2 Refueling Outage 2RE15, conducted from October 29, 2011, through

November 22, 2011, to confirm that licensee personnel had appropriately considered
risk, industry experience, and previous site-specific problems in developing and
implementing a plan that assured maintenance of defense in depth. During the refueling
outage, the inspectors observed portions of the shutdown and cooldown processes and
monitored licensee controls over the outage activities listed below.

° Configuration management, including maintenance of defense in depth, is
commensurate with the outage safety plan for key safety functions and
compliance with the applicable technical specifications when taking equipment
out of service.

. Clearance activities, including confirmation that tags were properly hung and
equipment appropriately configured to safely support the work or testing.
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. Installation and configuration of reactor coolant pressure, level, and temperature
instruments to provide accurate indication, accounting for instrument error.

. Status and configuration of electrical systems to ensure that technical
specifications and outage safety-plan requirements were met, and controls over
switchyard activities.

. Monitoring of decay heat removal processes, systems, and components.

. Verification that outage work was not impacting the ability of the operators to
operate the spent fuel pool cooling system.

° Reactor water inventory controls, including flow paths, configurations, and
alternative means for inventory addition, and controls to prevent inventory loss.

o Controls over activities that could affect reactivity.

. Refueling activities, including fuel handling and sipping to detect fuel assembly
leakage.

. Startup and ascension to full power operation, tracking of startup prerequisites,

walkdown of the reactor containment building to verify that debris had not been
left which could block emergency core cooling system suction strainers, and
reactor physics testing.

. Licensee identification and resolution of problems related to the refueling outage
activities.

Specific documents reviewed during this inspection are listed in the attachment.

These activities constitute completion of one refueling outage inspection sample as
defined in Inspection Procedure 71111.20-05.

b. Findings

No findings were identified.
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Unit 2 Forced Outage 2F1102

Inspection Scope

The inspectors reviewed the contingency plans for the Unit 2 Forced Outage 2F1102,
which commenced on November 29, 2011, to confirm that licensee personnel had
appropriately considered risk, industry experience, and previous site-specific problems in
developing and implementing a plan that assured maintenance of defense in depth.
During the forced outage, the inspectors responded to the reactor trip to observe the
shutdown and cooldown processes, understand what equipment did not function as
designed, and monitored licensee controls over the outage activities listed below.

. Configuration management, including maintenance of defense in depth, is
commensurate with the outage safety plan for key safety functions and
compliance with the applicable technical specifications when taking equipment
out of service.

. Clearance activities, including confirmation that tags were properly hung and
equipment appropriately configured to safely support the work or testing.

. Installation and configuration of reactor coolant pressure, level, and temperature
instruments to provide accurate indication, accounting for instrument error.

. Status and configuration of electrical systems to ensure that technical
specifications and outage safety-plan requirements were met, and controls over
switchyard activities.

. Monitoring of decay heat removal processes, systems, and components.

. Reactor water inventory controls, including flow paths, configurations, and
alternative means for inventory addition, and controls to prevent inventory loss.

. Controls over activities that could affect reactivity.
. Licensee identification and resolution of problems related to the forced outage
activities.

Specific documents reviewed during this inspection are listed in the attachment.

These activities constitute completion of one other outage inspection sample as defined
in Inspection Procedure 71111.20-05.

Findings

No findings were identified.
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1R22

Surveillance Testing (71111.22)

Inspection Scope

The inspectors reviewed the UFSAR, procedure requirements, and technical
specifications to ensure that the surveillance activities listed below demonstrated that the
systems, structures, and/or components tested were capable of performing their
intended safety functions. The inspectors either withessed or reviewed test data to verify
that the significant surveillance test attributes were adequate to address the following:

Preconditioning

Evaluation of testing impact on the plant
Acceptance criteria

Test equipment

Procedures

Jumper/lifted lead controls

Test data

Testing frequency and method demonstrated technical specification operability
Test equipment removal

Restoration of plant systems

Fulfillment of ASME Code requirements
Updating of performance indicator data

Engineering evaluations, root causes, and bases for returning tested systems,
structures, and components not meeting the test acceptance criteria were correct

Reference setting data

Annunciators and alarms setpoints

The inspectors also verified that licensee personnel identified and implemented any
needed corrective actions associated with the surveillance testing.

October 11, 2011, Unit 2, train C 125-volt battery surveillance test

October 20, 2011, Unit 1, auxiliary feedwater train A outside reactor containment
isolation valve surveillance test

November 18, 2011, Unit 2, residual heat removal pump 2B in-service test
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b.

2.

. November 21-28, 2011, Unit 2, reactor coolant system leakage detection system
surveillance test

. December 12, 2011, Unit 2, supplementary containment purge supply outside
reactor containment isolation valve test

Specific documents reviewed during this inspection are listed in the attachment.

These activities constitute completion of five surveillance testing inspection samples as
defined in Inspection Procedure 71111.22-05.

Findings
No findings were identified.

RADIATION SAFETY

Cornerstone: Occupational and Public Radiation Safety

2RS01 Radiological Hazard Assessment and Exposure Controls (71124.01)

a.

Inspection Scope

This area was inspected to: (1) review and assess licensee’s performance in assessing
the radiological hazards in the workplace associated with licensed activities and the
implementation of appropriate radiation monitoring and exposure control measures for
both individual and collective exposures, (2) verify the licensee is properly identifying
and reporting Occupational Radiation Safety Cornerstone performance indicators, and
(3) identify those performance deficiencies that were reportable as a performance
indicator and which may have represented a substantial potential for overexposure of
the worker.

The inspectors used the requirements in 10 CFR Part 20, the technical specifications,
and the licensee’s procedures required by technical specifications as criteria for
determining compliance. During the inspection, the inspectors interviewed the radiation
protection manager, radiation protection supervisors, and radiation workers. The
inspectors performed walkdowns of various portions of the plant, performed independent
radiation dose rate measurements and reviewed the following items:

. Performance indicator events and associated documentation reported by the
licensee in the Occupational Radiation Safety Cornerstone

° The hazard assessment program, including a review of the licensee’s evaluations
of changes in plant operations and radiological surveys to detect dose rates,
airborne radioactivity, and surface contamination levels

° Instructions and notices to workers, including labeling or marking containers of

radioactive material, radiation work permits, actions for electronic dosimeter
alarms, and changes to radiological conditions
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. Programs and processes for control of sealed sources and release of potentially
contaminated material from the radiologically controlled area, including survey
performance, instrument sensitivity, release criteria, procedural guidance, and
sealed source accountability

. Radiological hazards control and work coverage, including the adequacy of
surveys, radiation protection job coverage, and contamination controls; the use of
electronic dosimeters in high noise areas; dosimetry placement; airborne
radioactivity monitoring; controls for highly activated or contaminated materials
(non-fuel) stored within spent fuel and other storage pools; and posting and
physical controls for high radiation areas and very high radiation areas

. Radiation worker and radiation protection technician performance with respect to
radiation protection work requirements

) Audits, self-assessments, and corrective action documents related to radiological
hazard assessment and exposure controls since the last inspection

Specific documents reviewed during this inspection are listed in the attachment.

These activities constitute completion of the one required sample as defined in
Inspection Procedure 71124.01-05.

Findings

Introduction. The inspectors reviewed a Green self-revealing non-cited violation of
Technical Specification 6.8.1.a, which resulted from a worker and health physics
technician failing to follow radiation protection procedures and radiation work permit
requirements during work in the Unit 1 reactor cavity.

Description. On April 22, 2011, a contract radiation worker reported to the containment
access facility for a prejob briefing on removing equipment from the reactor cavity. After
the prejob briefing, the radiation worker crew leader and crew logged into the
radiologically controlled area to work. A health physics technician, who was not at the
prejob briefing, was assigned to perform job coverage. The health physics technician
asked the crew leader what the alarming dosimeter dose rate setpoint was for the task.
The crew leader replied the dose rate setpoint is 50 mrem per hour. The health physics
technician incorrectly understood that the crew leader stated 150 mrem per hour and
failed to verify these settings. As the work commenced, the crew lifted equipment from
the water as the health physics technician surveyed the item being removed from the
cavity. The item measured 990 mrem per hour on contact and 150 mrem per hour at
12 inches. Radiation Work Permit 2011-1-91, assigned to the crew, stated that
“Permission from RP [radiation protection] supervisor/designee is required to continue
activities if dose rates at the surface of the water exceed 100 mrem per hour.” However,
the crew and health physics technician did not comply with this step and continued to
pull the item from the water with dose rates measuring greater than 100 mrem per hour.
The inspectors’ review confirmed that permission from a radiation protection supervisor
or designee to remove the item was not received. When questioned, the crew leader
stated that he was not aware of this specific step in the radiation work permit
instructions. As the item was pulled from the water, the health physics technician
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advised the crew leader to avoid close contact with the tool. However, the crew leader
received a dose rate alarm that lasted for 84 seconds and a second dose rate alarm that
lasted for 4 seconds. The peak dose rate was 624 mrem per hour versus a setpoint of
50 mrem per hour. Both the health physics technician and the crew leader wore
headsets and failed to hear the alarms. Thus, the crew leader did not stop work, leave
the work area, and contact radiation protection as instructed by his work instructions and
procedure. It was not identified that the alarms occurred until the crew leader attempted
to log out of the Radiologically Controlled Area.

Analysis. The finding was more than minor because it was associated with the
Occupational Radiation Safety Cornerstone attribute of Program and Process and
affected the cornerstone objective of ensuring adequate protection of worker health and
safety from exposure to radiation during routine operations. The finding resulted in the
worker being exposed to higher radiation levels and potentially unintended dose. When
processed through the Occupational Radiation Safety Significance Determination
Process, the inspectors determined the finding to be of very low safety significance
because it was not: (1) an ALARA finding, (2) an overexposure, (3) a substantial
potential for overexposure, or (4) an inability to assess dose. The finding had a
cross-cutting aspect in the area of human performance, work practices component
because the health physics technician, providing coverage, failed to define and
effectively communicate expectations regarding procedural compliance [H.4(b)].

Enforcement. Technical Specification 6.8.1.a, requires, in part, that written procedures
shall be established, implemented, and maintained covering the applicable procedures
recommended in Appendix A to Regulatory Guide 1.33, “Quality Assurance Program
Requirements,” of February 1978. Section 7(e) to Regulatory Guide 1.33 requires, in
part, that radiation protection procedures are established for access control to radiation
areas, including a radiation work permit system. Procedure OPGP03-ZR-0051,
“Radiological Access Controls/Standards,” Revision 26, Section 4.3.1, requires the
radiation worker to know their radiation work permit requirements, including the special
instructions. Radiation Work Permit 2011-1-91 stated that “Permission from RP
[radiation protection] supervisor/designee is required to continue activities if dose rates
at the surface of the water exceed 100 mrem per hour.” Contrary to the above, on
April 22, 2011, the contract worker/crew leader and health physics technician violated
this requirement when the worker continued to pull an item from the water with dose
rates greater than 100 mrem per hour and failed to confirm approval of this action by a
radiation protection supervisor or a designee. Because this failure to follow radiation
protection procedural guidance was of very low safety significance and has been
entered into the licensee’s corrective action program as Condition Report 11-7217, this
violation is being treated as a non-cited violation consistent with Section 2.3.2 of the
NRC Enforcement Policy: NCV 05000498/2011005-02; “Failure to Follow Radiation
Protection Procedural Requirements.”

2RS02 Occupational ALARA Planning and Controls (71124.02)

a. Inspection Scope

This area was inspected to assess performance with respect to maintaining occupational
individual and collective radiation exposures ALARA. The inspectors used the
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requirements in 10 CFR Part 20, the technical specifications, and the licensee’s
procedures required by technical specifications as criteria for determining compliance.
During the inspection, the inspectors interviewed licensee personnel and reviewed the
following items:

o Site-specific ALARA procedures and collective exposure history, including the
current 3-year rolling average, site-specific trends in collective exposures, and
source-term measurements

. ALARA work activity evaluations/postjob reviews, exposure estimates, and
exposure mitigation requirements

o The methodology for estimating work activity exposures, the intended dose
outcome, the accuracy of dose rate and man-hour estimates, and intended
versus actual work activity doses and the reasons for any inconsistencies

o Records detailing the historical trends and current status of tracked plant source
terms, and contingency plans for expected changes in the source term due to
changes in plant fuel performance issues or changes in plant primary chemistry

. Radiation worker and radiation protection technician performance during work
activities in radiation areas, airborne radioactivity areas, or high radiation areas

. Audits, self-assessments, and corrective action documents related to ALARA
planning and controls since the last inspection

Specific documents reviewed during this inspection are listed in the attachment.

These activities constitute completion of the one required sample as defined in
Inspection Procedure 71124.02-05.

Findings

Introduction. The inspectors identified a Green non-cited violation of Technical
Specification 6.8.1.a, for the failure to follow procedures and minimize occupational
doses during an outage maintenance activity for the disassembly of the Unit 2 reactor
head.

Description. During the Unit 2 outage (spring 2010), the licensee inadequately planned
the maintenance tasks associated with the disassembly of the old Unit 2 reactor head.
Specifically, Work Activity Number 376357 (disassembly of the old reactor head) was not
properly planned and managed, which resulted in unplanned worker dose. The work
activity for the disassembly of the Unit 2 old reactor vessel closure head during the
outage had a projected dose of 8.396 rem and 3998 man-hours. However, the job
ended with an actual collective dose of 14.072 rem and 4580 man-hours, which
exceeded the projected dose estimate by 68 percent.

The original projected dose was exceeded, in part, because the licensee encountered
four stuck control rod drive mechanisms during the Unit 2 outage. The licensee had
experienced 20 stuck control rod drive mechanisms during Unit 1 outage (fall 2009) for
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reactor head disassembly activities. This unanticipated activity resulted in 8.162 rem of
unplanned Unit 1 dose to workers. Difficulties with these stuck control rod drive
mechanisms in Unit 2 required work to occur inside and outside the reactor shroud. The
licensee failed to perform in-process reviews as additional dose accrued from the work
inside the reactor shroud. Effective dose rates and the number of hours to complete the
job were higher than originally planned. However, the licensee failed to stop work to
perform in-process reviews as problems with the Unit 2 stuck control rod drive
mechanisms became apparent inside the reactor shroud.

Procedure OPRP07-ZR-0010, “Radiation Work Permits/Radiological Work ALARA
Reviews,” Revision 30, provides radiation protection with instructions for evaluating and
implementing radiation exposure controls as part of work planning and performance.
Step 7.21.4.1, of this procedure, requires the licensee to initiate in-process reviews if it is
apparent that the job cannot be completed for less than or equal to 125 percent of the
original dose projection. Step 7.21.6 instructs the licensee to utilize Addendum 1 for the
documentation of this in-process review. Addendum 1 has the work group supervisor
and radiation protection job coverage technicians to consider observations and lessons
learned and dose reduction techniques for the rest of the job. The licensee also has to
determine if radiological controls, dose projections, and man-hours have to be revised to
decide if implementing additional controls is necessary. Then, if the job has not been
completed, radiation protection incorporates the revised exposure saving controls for the
job instructs the worker on the changes.

Analysis. The failure to follow ALARA procedures during maintenance activities is a
performance deficiency. This finding is more than minor because it affected the
Occupational Radiation Safety Cornerstone attribute of Program and Process, in that,
failure to follow ALARA procedures caused increased collective radiation dose for the
job activity to exceed 5 person-rem and exceeded the planned dose by more than

50 percent. Using the Occupational Radiation Safety Significance Determination
Process, the inspectors determined this finding to be of very low safety significance
because although it involved ALARA planning and controls, the licensee’s latest rolling
three-year average does not exceed 135 person-rem per unit. Furthermore, the finding
had an associated cross-cutting aspect in the area of human performance, work control
component because the licensee did not fully incorporate risk insights, job site
conditions, plant structures, systems and components, and radiological safety, as well as
the need for planned contingencies to maintain doses ALARA [H.3(a)].

Enforcement. Technical Specification 6.8.1.a requires written procedures be
established, implemented, and maintained covering the applicable procedures
recommended in Appendix A of Regulatory Guide 1.33, “Quality Assurance Program
Requirements (Operation),” Revision 2, February 1978. Section 7¢(9), “Implementation
of ALARA Program,” of Appendix A to Regulatory Guide 1.33 requires, in part,

radiation protection procedures for the implementation of an ALARA program.
Procedure OPRP07-ZR-0010, “Radiation Work Permits/Radiological Work ALARA
Reviews,” Revision 30, Section 7.21, provided instructions on performing radiological
in-process reviews of work activities. Step 7.21.4.1 required the licensee to determine if
the job can be completed within 125 percent of the projected dose and to perform an
in-process review if it is apparent that the job cannot be completed within this threshold.
Contrary to the above, in April 2010, the licensee failed to determine that an in-process
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4,

review for Work Activity Number 376357 had to be initiated when it was apparent the
projected dose would be exceeded by 125 percent for the Unit 2 stuck control rod drive
mechanisms. Consequently, the licensee did not re-project doses, and implement dose
saving controls for the job performed inside the reactor shroud. Because the violation
was of very low safety significance and was entered into licensee’s corrective action
program as Condition Reports 10-6669, 10-7863, and 11-29161, this violation is being
treated as a non-cited violation consistent with Section 2.3.2 of the NRC Enforcement
Policy: NCV 05000499/2011005-03; “Failure to Follow Procedures and Maintain Doses
ALARA.”

OTHER ACTIVITIES

Cornerstones: Initiating Events, Mitigating Systems, Barrier Integrity, Emergency
Preparedness, Public Radiation Safety, Occupational Radiation Safety, and Physical
Protection

40A1 Performance Indicator Verification (71151)

A

Data Submission Issue

Inspection Scope

The inspectors performed a review of the performance indicator data submitted by the
licensee for the third quarter 2011 performance indicators for any obvious
inconsistencies prior to its public release in accordance with Inspection Manual
Chapter 0608, “Performance Indicator Program.”

This review was performed as part of the inspectors’ normal plant status activities and,
as such, did not constitute a separate inspection sample.

Findings
No findings were identified.

Mitigating Systems Performance Index - Emergency AC Power System (MS06)

Inspection Scope

The inspectors sampled licensee submittals for the mitigating systems performance
index - emergency ac power system performance indicator for Units 1 and 2 for the
period from the fourth quarter 2010 through the third quarter 2011. To determine the
accuracy of the performance indicator data reported during those periods, the inspectors
used definitions and guidance contained in NEI Document 99-02, “Regulatory
Assessment Performance Indicator Guideline,” Revision 6. The inspectors reviewed the
licensee’s operator narrative logs, mitigating systems performance index derivation
reports, issue reports, event reports, and NRC integrated inspection reports for the
period of October 2010 through September 2011 to validate the accuracy of the
submittals. The inspectors reviewed the mitigating systems performance index
component risk coefficient to determine if it had changed by more than 25 percent in
value since the previous inspection, and if so, that the change was in accordance with
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applicable NEI guidance. The inspectors also reviewed the licensee’s issue report
database to determine if any problems had been identified with the performance
indicator data collected or transmitted for this indicator; and the licensee did identify a
condition in which the 5-year overhaul planned activities numbers had not been
appropriately reported. The licensee corrected the condition in the most recent data
transmitted. Specific documents reviewed during this inspection are described in the
attachment.

These activities constitute completion of one mitigating systems performance

index - emergency ac power system sample per unit as defined in Inspection
Procedure 71151-05.

Findings
No findings were identified.

Mitigating Systems Performance Index - High Pressure Injection Systems (MS07)

Inspection Scope

The inspectors sampled licensee submittals for the mitigating systems performance
index - high pressure injection systems performance indicator for Units 1 and 2 for the
period from the fourth quarter 2010 through the third quarter 2011. To determine the
accuracy of the performance indicator data reported during those periods, the inspectors
used definitions and guidance contained in NEI Document 99-02, “Regulatory
Assessment Performance Indicator Guideline,” Revision 6. The inspectors reviewed the
licensee’s operator narrative logs, issue reports, mitigating systems performance index
derivation reports, event reports, and NRC integrated inspection reports for the period of
October 2010 through September 2011 to validate the accuracy of the submittals. The
inspectors reviewed the mitigating systems performance index component risk
coefficient to determine if it had changed by more than 25 percent in value since the
previous inspection, and if so, that the change was in accordance with applicable

NEI guidance. The inspectors also reviewed the licensee’s issue report database to
determine if any problems had been identified with the performance indicator data
collected or transmitted for this indicator and none were identified. Specific documents
reviewed during this inspection are described in the attachment.

These activities constitute completion of one mitigating systems performance

index - high pressure injection system sample per unit as defined in Inspection
Procedure 71151-05.

Findings
No findings were identified.

Mitigating Systems Performance Index - Heat Removal System (MS08)

Inspection Scope
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The inspectors sampled licensee submittals for the mitigating systems performance
index - heat removal system performance indicator for Units 1 and 2 for the period from
the fourth quarter 2010 through the third quarter 2011. To determine the accuracy of the
performance indicator data reported during those periods, the inspectors used definitions
and guidance contained in NEI Document 99-02, “Regulatory Assessment Performance
Indicator Guideline,” Revision 6. The inspectors reviewed the licensee’s operator
narrative logs, issue reports, event reports, mitigating systems performance index
derivation reports, and NRC integrated inspection reports for the period of October 2010
through September 2011 to validate the accuracy of the submittals. The inspectors
reviewed the mitigating systems performance index component risk coefficient to
determine if it had changed by more than 25 percent in value since the previous
inspection, and if so, that the change was in accordance with applicable NEI guidance.
The inspectors also reviewed the licensee’s issue report database to determine if any
problems had been identified with the performance indicator data collected or
transmitted for this indicator and none were identified. Specific documents reviewed
during this inspection are described in the attachment.

These activities constitute completion of one mitigating systems performance

index - heat removal system sample per unit as defined in Inspection
Procedure 71151-05.

Findings
No findings were identified.

Mitigating Systems Performance Index - Residual Heat Removal System (MS09)

Inspection Scope

The inspectors sampled licensee submittals for the mitigating systems performance
index - residual heat removal system performance indicator for Units 1 and 2 for the
period from the fourth quarter 2010 through the third quarter 2011. To determine the
accuracy of the performance indicator data reported during those periods, the inspectors
used definitions and guidance contained in NEI Document 99-02, “Regulatory
Assessment Performance Indicator Guideline,” Revision 6. The inspectors reviewed the
licensee’s operator narrative logs, issue reports, mitigating systems performance index
derivation reports, event reports, and NRC integrated inspection reports for the period of
October 2010 through September 2011 to validate the accuracy of the submittals. The
inspectors reviewed the mitigating systems performance index component risk
coefficient to determine if it had changed by more than 25 percent in value since the
previous inspection, and if so, that the change was in accordance with applicable

NEI guidance. The inspectors also reviewed the licensee’s issue report database to
determine if any problems had been identified with the performance indicator data
collected or transmitted for this indicator and none were identified. Specific documents
reviewed during this inspection are described in the attachment.

These activities constitute completion of one mitigating systems performance

index - residual heat removal system sample per unit as defined in Inspection
Procedure 71151-05.

-30 - Enclosure



b.

Findings
No findings were identified.

Mitigating Systems Performance Index - Cooling Water Systems (MS10)

Inspection Scope

The inspectors sampled licensee submittals for the mitigating systems performance
index - cooling water systems performance indicator for Units 1 and 2 for the period from
the fourth quarter 2010 through the third quarter 2011. To determine the accuracy of the
performance indicator data reported during those periods, the inspectors used definitions
and guidance contained in NEI Document 99-02, “Regulatory Assessment Performance
Indicator Guideline,” Revision 6. The inspectors reviewed the licensee’s operator
narrative logs, issue reports, mitigating systems performance index derivation reports,
event reports, and NRC integrated inspection reports for the period of October 2010
through September 2011 to validate the accuracy of the submittals. The inspectors
reviewed the mitigating systems performance index component risk coefficient to
determine if it had changed by more than 25 percent in value since the previous
inspection, and if so, that the change was in accordance with applicable NEI guidance.
The inspectors also reviewed the licensee’s issue report database to determine if any
problems had been identified with the performance indicator data collected or
transmitted for this indicator and none were identified. Specific documents reviewed
during this inspection are described in the attachment.

These activities constitute completion of one mitigating systems performance

index - cooling water system sample per unit as defined in Inspection
Procedure 71151-05.

Findings

No findings were identified.
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7 Occupational Exposure Control Effectiveness (OR01)

a. Inspection Scope

The inspectors reviewed performance indicator data for the first quarter of 2010 through
the second quarter of 2011. The objective of the inspection was to determine the
accuracy and completeness of the performance indicator data reported during these
periods. The inspectors used the definitions and clarifying notes contained in NEI
Document 99-02, “Regulatory Assessment Performance Indicator Guideline,” Revision 6,
as criteria for determining whether the licensee was in compliance.

The inspectors reviewed corrective action program records associated with high
radiation area (greater than 1 rem/hr) and very high radiation area non-conformances.
The inspectors reviewed radiological, controlled area exit transactions greater than
100 mrem. The inspectors also conducted walkdowns of high radiation areas
(greater than 1 rem/hr) and very high radiation area entrances to determine the
adequacy of the controls of these areas.

These activities constitute completion of the occupational exposure control effectiveness
sample as defined in Inspection Procedure 71151-05.

b.  Findings
No findings were identified.

8 Radiological Effluent Technical Specifications/Offsite Dose Calculation Manual
Radiological Effluent Occurrences (PR01)

a. Inspection Scope

The inspectors reviewed performance indicator data for the first quarter of 2010 through
the second quarter of 2011. The objective of the inspection was to determine the
accuracy and completeness of the performance indicator data reported during these
periods. The inspectors used the definitions and clarifying notes contained in NEI
Document 99-02, “Regulatory Assessment Performance Indicator Guideline,” Revision 6,
as criteria for determining whether the licensee was in compliance.

The inspectors reviewed the licensee’s corrective action program records and selected
individual annual or special reports to identify potential occurrences such as
unmonitored, uncontrolled, or improperly calculated effluent releases that may have
impacted offsite dose.

These activities constitute completion of the radiological effluent technical
specifications/offsite dose calculation manual radiological effluent occurrences sample
as defined in Inspection Procedure 71151-05.

b.  Findings
No findings were identified.

40A2 Identification and Resolution of Problems (71152)
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Routine Review of Identification and Resolution of Problems

Inspection Scope

As part of the various baseline inspection procedures discussed in previous sections of
this report, the inspectors routinely reviewed issues during baseline inspection activities
and plant status reviews to verify that they were being entered into the licensee’s
corrective action program at an appropriate threshold, that adequate attention was being
given to timely corrective actions, and that adverse trends were identified and
addressed. The inspectors reviewed attributes that included the complete and accurate
identification of the problem; the timely correction, commensurate with the safety
significance; the evaluation and disposition of performance issues, generic implications,
common causes, contributing factors, root causes, extent of condition reviews, and
previous occurrences reviews; and the classification, prioritization, focus, and timeliness
of corrective actions. Minor issues entered into the licensee’s corrective action program
because of the inspectors’ observations are included in the attached list of documents
reviewed.

These routine reviews for the identification and resolution of problems did not constitute
any additional inspection samples. Instead, by procedure, they were considered an
integral part of the inspections performed during the quarter and documented in
Section 1 of this report.

Findings
No findings were identified.

Daily Corrective Action Program Reviews

Inspection Scope

In order to assist with the identification of repetitive equipment failures and specific
human performance issues for follow-up, the inspectors performed a daily screening of
items entered into the licensee’s corrective action program. The inspectors
accomplished this through review of the station’s daily corrective action documents.

The inspectors performed these daily reviews as part of their daily plant status
monitoring activities and, as such, did not constitute any separate inspection samples.

Findings

No findings were identified.
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Semi-Annual Trend Review

Inspection Scope

The inspectors performed a review of the licensee’s corrective action program and
associated documents to identify trends that could indicate the existence of a more
significant safety issue. The inspectors focused their review on repetitive equipment
issues, but also considered the results of daily corrective action item screening
discussed in Section 40A2.2, above, licensee trending efforts, and licensee human
performance results. The inspectors nominally considered the 6-month period of
July 2011 through December 2011, although some examples expanded beyond those
dates where the scope of the trend warranted.

The inspectors also included issues documented outside the normal corrective action
program in major equipment problem lists, repetitive and/or rework maintenance lists,
departmental problem/challenges lists, system health reports, quality assurance
audit/surveillance reports, self-assessment reports, and Maintenance Rule assessments.
The inspectors compared and contrasted their results with the results contained in the
licensee’s corrective action program trending reports. Corrective actions associated with
a sample of the issues identified in the licensee’s trending reports were reviewed for
adequacy.

These activities constitute completion of one single semi-annual trend inspection sample
as defined in Inspection Procedure 71152-05.

Findings
No findings were identified.

Selected Issue Follow-up Inspection

Inspection Scope

During a review of items entered in the licensee’s corrective action program,

the inspectors recognized a continuing trend on corrective action items associated

with the 13.8 kVac and Class 1E 4160 Vac transformers and load tap changers.

The inspectors had previously inspected parts of this issue in NRC Inspection

Report 05000498/2011004 and 05000499/2011004 (see Section 40A2). The licensee
was already in the process of performing a prompt operability determination, a
reportability review, and a root cause investigation to understand the sequence of events
that resulted in an inadequate design change package being implemented on the Units 1
and 2 Class 1E 4160 Vac ESF train B transformers, and setpoint changes on the Units 1
and 2 13.8 kVac unit auxiliary transformers. The licensee was also in the process of
creating a new design change package to adjust the settings on the 13.8 kVac unit
auxiliary transformers load tap changers and the Class 1E 4160 Vac ESF transformers
and load tap changers. The inspectors reviewed all the condition reports generated, the
UFSAR, technical specifications, design basis documents, the design change package,
the root cause investigation, the operability determination, compensatory measures,
station logs, vendor documents, and interviewed personnel.
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These activities constitute completion of one in-depth problem identification and
resolution sample as defined in Inspection Procedure 71152-05.

Findings

Introduction. The inspectors identified a Green non-cited violation of 10 CFR Part 50,
Appendix B, Criteria lll, “Design Control,” for the failure to ensure that design standards
were correctly translated into drawings, procedures, and instructions. Specifically, the
design specification of the Class 1E 4160 Vac buses were not maintained with the
installation of the new transformer with a load tap changer feature.

Description. On May 14, 2011, during the weekly performance of the ESF power
availability surveillance, the licensee discovered the voltage on the 480 Vac train B load
centers E2B1 and E2B2 at 520 Vac, which exceeded the surveillance acceptance
criterion of a maximum voltage of 506 Vac. Based on the failed surveillance, the

E2B bus was declared inoperable. On May 15, 2011, the Class 1E 4160 Vac train B
ESF transformer load tap changer was placed in manual and voltage was returned to
within band, and the E2B bus was declared operable. The licensee determined that the
voltage was outside of the acceptance criteria starting on May 8, 2011, and as a result
exceeded the technical specification allowed outage time. Even though the licensee
initially identified the issue, it is being dispositioned as NRC identified based on inspector
added value. The inspectors added value by identifying a previously unknown
weakness in the licensee’s evaluation and corrective actions associated with the event.
The inspectors identified that: (1) the licensee’s prompt operability did not address all
appropriate components for operability, for example, the battery chargers, inverters, and
relays; (2) the failure modes and effects analysis did not consider all possible failure
modes for the load tap changer; and (3) the 10 CFR 50.59 evaluation was incorrectly
screened out when a full evaluation should have been performed. The inspectors
reviewed the licensee’s prompt operability to help in determining the significance of the
event and determined that even though not all appropriate components were evaluated,
the conclusions were still valid, that even at the high voltage of 520 volts; all equipment
would still function as designed. As a result, even though it exceeded the technical
specification surveillance procedure acceptance criteria, it still maintained functionality
(nonconforming/degraded) per Part 9900 Technical Guidance, “Operability
Determinations & Functionality Assessments for Resolution of Degraded or
Nonconforming Conditions Adverse to Quality or Safety,” dated April 16, 2008.

The root cause investigation determined that the design change package that installed
the new Class 1E 4160 Vac ESF transformers with load tap changer capability on the
train B buses in Units 1 and 2 in October 2009 and April 2010, respectively, was
inadequate. The design change package adjusted the electrical settings on the Units 1
and 2 unit auxiliary transformers 13.8 kVac buses, and the Class 1E 4160 Vac

ESF buses. The electrical design is such that adjustments on the 13.8 kVac buses can
impact the 4160 Vac buses, which can impact the 480 Vac buses. The design change
package implemented incorrect settings on the 13.8 kVac and 4160 Vac buses on both
Units 1 and 2 because of incorrect modeling in the electrical voltage regulation study
calculation EC 5000. Errors in the modeling included: (1) the voltage values allowed by
the bandwidth of the load tap changers on the unit auxiliary transformers, and the Class
1E 4160 Vac ESF transformers; and (2) the initial input voltage for the 13.8 kVac and
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4160 Vac buses was incorrect. Additionally, the root cause investigation determined that
as an organization, licensee management failed to provide oversight of the outside

vendor, during the development of the design change package, because the licensee did
not have a method to identify, classify, control, and monitor highly complex modifications.

The licensee captured this event as Condition Report 11-10205, and implemented
immediate compensatory measures of increased monitoring on the Class 1E 4160 and
480 Vac buses by implementing shiftly temporary logs, to ensure that Class 1E loads
were within their technical specifications surveillance procedure acceptance criteria. The
licensee also programmed a user defined control room alarm on the integrated computer
system for all three trains of 4160 Vac bus voltage to alert the operators when the
voltage was approaching the limit. These compensatory measures are to remain in
place until the new design change package is implemented to restore electrical design
margin. Unit 2 design change package was implemented in November 2011 and Unit 1
design change package is scheduled for October 2012. The licensee also implemented
a management sponsored review team to oversee the new design change package,
implement new training requirements for electrical engineers, revise existing electrical
calculations to incorporate open amendments, and revise the design basis documents,
UFSAR, and other design documents with the revised calculation results.

Analysis. The failure to perform an adequate design review to address the design
requirements for the Class 1E 4160 Vac ESF transformers was a performance
deficiency. The finding was more than minor because it was associated with the
Mitigating Systems Cornerstone attribute of Design Control and affected the cornerstone
objective to ensure the availability, reliability, and capability of systems that respond to
initiating events to prevent undesirable consequences. The inadequate design change
package resulted in the licensee declaring the Unit 2 Class 1E 4160 Vac E2B bus
inoperable because it was outside of the technical specification surveillance procedure
acceptance criteria for longer than allowed by technical specifications. The inspectors
performed the significance determination using NRC Inspection Manual Chapter 0609,
Attachment 0609.04, “Phase 1 — Initial Screening and Characterization of Findings,”
dated January 10, 2008, because it affected the Mitigating Systems Cornerstone while
the plant was at power. The finding was determined to be of very low safety significance
(Green) because it was a design deficiency that did not result in a loss of operability or
functionality per Part 9900 Technical Guidance, “Operability Determinations &
Functionality Assessments for Resolution of Degraded or Nonconforming Conditions
Adverse to Quality or Safety,” dated April 16, 2008. In addition, this finding had human
performance cross-cutting aspects associated with work practices in that the licensee
did not ensure supervisory and management oversight of work activities, including
contractors, such that nuclear safety was supported [H.4(c)].

Enforcement. Title 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criteria lll, “Design Control,” requires,
in part, that measures shall be established to assure that applicable regulatory
requirements and design basis are correctly translated into specifications, drawings,
procedures, and instructions. Contrary to this, from October 2009 on Unit 1 and

April 2010 on Unit 2, the licensee did not have an adequate design change package to
assure that the design basis for the Class 1E 4160 Vac bus was correctly translated into
specifications, drawings, procedures, and instructions. As a result, from May 8-15, 2011,
Unit 2 Class 1E 4160 Vac bus E2B was declared inoperable because voltage was above
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the technical specification surveillance procedure acceptance criteria. The licensee’s
immediate corrective actions included restoring the bus voltage to within acceptance
criteria and establishing temporary logs for increased monitoring of the Class 1E

4160 Vac buses voltages. Since this violation was of very low safety significance and
was documented in the licensee’s corrective action program as Condition

Report 11-10205, it is being treated as a non-cited violation consistent with Section 2.3.2
of the NRC Enforcement Policy: NCV 05000498/2011005-04 and
05000499/2011005-04, “Inadequate Design Change on Class 1E 4160 Vac ESF
Transformers.”

40A3 Event Follow-up (71153)

A Invalid Automatic Actuation of an Emergency Diesel Generator and 60-Day Phone Call
in Lieu of a Written Licensee Event Report

On August 27, 2011, during surveillance testing, an automatic actuation of the Unit 1
train A emergency diesel generator occurred due to a Mode Il actuation signal from the
load sequencer. The licensee determined that the Mode Il actuation was an invalid
actuation because of a failure in an integrated chip on a circuit card in the processor
module. The licensee replaced the integrated chip and successfully performed the
surveillance test to return the equipment to operable status on August 29, 2011. The
licensee initially reported the event as a reportable event for a valid actuation, but has
retracted that report since it was determined to be invalid. However, in accordance with
10 CFR 50.73(a)(2)(iv)(A) and 10 CFR 50.73(a)(1), the licensee made a 60-day
telephone notification in lieu of a written licensee event report. The inspectors reviewed
the apparent cause, condition reports, control room logs, interviewed personnel, and
reviewed 10 CFR 50.73 to ensure that the licensee satisfied the reporting requirements.

2 (Closed) Licensee Event Report 05000499/2011-001-00, “Exceeding ESF Bus Voltage
Technical Specification Surveillance Acceptance Criteria”

The licensee submitted this event report in accordance with 10 CFR 50.73(a)(2)(i)(B),
any operation or condition prohibited by the plant’s technical specification. On

May 14, 2011, Class 1E 4160 Vac Bus E2B on Unit 2 was declared inoperable due to the
load center voltage being greater than the technical specification surveillance
requirement procedure acceptance criteria. A review of the Unit 2 integrated computer
system data established that the E2B voltage was higher than the acceptance criteria,
and, therefore, inoperable for longer than allowed by technical specifications. Root
causes of this event were determined to be inappropriate settings on Unit 2 unit auxiliary
transformer, the unit auxiliary transformer load tap changer, and an inadequate E2B
design change package for a new ESF transformer. The licensee has implemented
interim corrective actions to maintain voltage within the acceptance criteria while a new
design change package is implemented to correct the condition. The enforcement
aspects of this event are described in S